
 

 
 

2020 Clean Energy RFO Questions & Answers 

 

Submission Process 
1. How do bidders confirm they have correctly registered for this RFO? Were we supposed 

to receive a confirmation email/notice? 

a. Once bidders register on the website, they will automatically be redirected to a 
confirmation page. Confirmation emails are not sent to registered bidders. 

2. If we already have an executed NDA with CPA in place that is current, I presume we do 

not need to execute another NDA? 

a. Bidders are required to submit an NDA with each submission package. If bidders 
have existing NDAs with CPA, they should still complete the “CPA NDA - 2020 
Clean Energy RFO” and submit it for each project. 

3. Is there a PPA for review specific to shaped products? 

a. Projects categorized as shaped/firm energy products should submit the “RPS PPA 
Pro Forma (CEC Rev. 10-21-20).docx” with redlines appropriate for the proposed 
product. 

4. What if all you have is a long hour duration offer. Can you just make one offer for the long 

duration?  

a. Yes. RPS Generation Plus Storage and Standalone Storage projects must submit a 
primary offer for either 4 hours or 8+ hours of storage. 

5. For PV+S design, are bidders able to submit storage pricing as a $/MWh adder, rather 

than $/kw-mo? 

a. The storage capacity should be priced in the Offer Form as $/kw-mo. Bidders may 
submit additional pricing schemes (e.g. $/MWh) as part of the Project Narrative 
document. 

RFO Requirements 
6. When do Phase 1 assessments need to be completed? If the Phase I interconnection study 

is in progress and not completed, will our offer be considered? 

a. CPA will only consider bids that have successfully completed the Phase 1 
interconnection study prior to the RFO submission date. 

7. Does the Applicant meet the minimum bid criteria for Interconnection, if applicant has 

filed a Phase 1 Interconnection Study and has preliminary feedback from TSP confirming 

feasibility but has not completed the Independent Study Process? 

a. Please see response to Q6.  



 

 

8. Will CPA consider a 20 MW-ac portfolio of mostly 3 MW-ac and one 2 MW-ac solar PV 

projects spread across Southern California located, all located in Disadvantaged 

Communities (DACs) or Low-Income areas? 

a. CPA requires that each project facility has a minimum capacity of 5 MW. Smaller 
projects cannot be aggregated to meet the 5 MW requirement. Please note that 
pending CPUC approval, CPA intends to launch an RFO specific to DAC resources 
pursuant to CPUC D.18-06-027 and Resolution E-4999 in the coming months.  

9. Can the standalone storage offer be for longer than 15 years? 

a. The primary and alternative Offer Forms must be for 15 years. Bidders may 
suggest different term lengths as part of the Project Narrative.    

10. Will CPA accept a firm and shaped offer for PCC1 Energy and RECs based on financial 

commitment to deliver the PCC1 at an agreed point of delivery if the Applicant does not 

own the underlying asset that generated the PCC1 energy? 

a. Yes, but Bidders must describe such a relationship with other entities (i.e. the 
asset owner) in the Project Narrative.  

11. Will CPA consider proposals for RPS+Storage offers if only the storage capacity has FCDS 

and the generation portion is Energy Only or PCDS? If yes, where should Bidder specify 

this aspect of the Offer? 

a. CPA expects that offers include FCDS for the entire project. However, if this is not 
possible for your project, CPA will consider offers with FCDS for the storage 
portion only and Bidders should: 

i. Include a ninth section in the Project Narrative titled “Full Capacity 
Deliverability Status” and describe their proposal 

ii. Provide appropriate redlines to the proforma agreement  
12. Is it CPA’s intent that firm/shaped product offers would not include capacity attributes? 

If yes, will CPA consider proposals for firm/shaped product offers that also include RA 

associated with the generation and/or storage facility?  

a. CPA intends to collect all relevant and available Energy, Environmental Attributes, 
Resource Adequacy, and Ancillary Services benefits from the projects including 
firm/shaped product offers. Bidders should describe in the Project Narrative the 
relevant Energy, Environmental Attributes, Resource Adequacy and Ancillary 
Services benefits which are being offered as part of a firm/shaped offer. 

13. Why does CPA prefer co-located resource setup versus a hybrid setup?  

a. CPA prefers co-located resources for several reasons including the following: 
i. Contracting is more straightforward for co-located resources 

ii. Resource optimization is clearer and offers more optionality 
iii. Co-located two resource ID configuration provides a more straightforward 

path to grid charging post ITC recapture period 
14. When is security posting due?  

a. Please refer to section 8 of the RFO Protocol and the Exclusivity Agreement for 

details and timing regarding the Exclusivity Period and the Shortlist Deposit. 



 

 

Please refer to the relevant proforma agreement for details and timing regarding 

the Development and Performance Security.  

15. Can you please explain that $60/kW seller requirement? Is that a brokerage fee?  

a. Performance and Development Security is $60/kW of Contract Capacity for 
generation resources and $90/kW of Contract Capacity for storage resources. This 
is not a brokerage fee. Seller security requirements allow CPA to secure Seller’s 
obligation under the relevant agreement.  

16. Can CPA indicate a preferred diurnal shape for the different types of projects? 

a. For RPS Generation and RPS Generation Plus Storage: CPA is asking bidders 
(through the Offer Form) to provide hourly generation data for the renewable 
resource alone (i.e. not altered by storage dispatch or curtailment). The provided 
data will be used to value the project through optimizing the combined renewable 
and storage resources (as relevant) while considering market dynamics and other 
relevant factors. Note that CPA expects to act as a scheduling coordinator for RPS 
Generation Plus Storage projects.  

b. For shaped/firm products: Bidders may submit up to three different energy 
profiles. CPA is interested in profiles that provide the most value given its specific 
load and resource portfolio needs. Bidders can consider CPA’s load to be similar 
in shape to that of CAISO.  

17. Are there preferred Pnodes for storage? 

a. CPA prefers Pnodes that provide the highest value for the project.  

18. Do the CCAs have a list of preferred points of interconnects for this RFO?  

a. See response to Q17.  CPA does not have a list of preferred points of 
interconnection. 

19. Can CPA clarify the cycling expectation of the ESS? The protocol notes that the resource 

will operate "a maximum of 2 cycles/day", but also notes "unlimited daily dispatches".   

a. Cycling Limits: in the “Compliant Submission Specifications” section of the RFO 
Protocol, the “Operation” line item dictates that CPA expects storage resources to 
dispatch approximately 365 cycles/year and a maximum of 2 cycles/day. For 
purposes of PPA/ESA pricing for capacity maintenance, bidders can assume that 
the maximum limit of 365 cycles is achieved. Below are more details on this topic: 

i. All storage projects must be able to provide 365 cycles/year and 2 
cycles/day while maintaining nameplate capacity performance 
throughout the entire project term 

ii. Please include in the “Offer Variants” section of the Project Narrative 
any alternative charge structures or cycle limits. These additional cycling 
options may be negotiated during the final negotiations phase 

iii. Cycling limits will be incorporated in the final text of the PPA or ESA 
b. Daily Dispatch Limits: In the “Compliant Submission Specifications” section of the 

RFO Protocol, there is a line item “Daily Dispatch Limits”. This indicates that there 
should be no limit on the number of times a day that CPA may dispatch the storage 
resource, as long as the total MWh throughput does not exceed the 2 full 



 

 

cycles/day limit. To be clear, this applies to both RPS Plus Storage and Standalone 
Storage projects 

 

Other Questions 
20. Will preference be given to projects within LA & Ventura counties? Will preference be 

given to projects within the 32 jurisdictions? 

a. Yes, preference will be given to projects within LA and Ventura counties, with 
greater preference for projects within the 32 jurisdictions of CPA. More details on 
the qualitative criteria can be found in the RFO protocol and webinar presentation. 

21. Does the CCA want to own the battery or do they want to buy power from the battery 

through a PPA?  

b. All projects will be owned by the Bidder, with CPA contracting the output of 

the resource for the duration of the 15-year term.  

22. Will bidders have a chance to see the bid opening results? If yes, will the bid opening be 

a public event or for registered parties only? 

a. Please refer to section 12 Confidentiality in the RFO Protocol.  
23. Is CPA planning to run an RFO in 2021 with similar terms/MWs contracted? 

a. CPA held a Clean Energy RFO in 2018, held a Reliability and Clean Energy RFO in 
2019, is holding a 2020 Clean Energy RFO, and anticipates running additional 
solicitations in 2021 and 2022.  However, CPA may, in its sole discretion, add or 
change RFOs. 

 

 


